

Education provider	Anglia Ruskin University
Name of programme(s)	BA (Hons) Social Work (Cambridge), Full time
	BA (Hons) Social Work (Chelmsford), Full time
	BA (Hons) Social Work (Peterborough), Part time
	MA Social Work (Cambridge), Full time
	MA Social Work (Chelmsford), Full time
	Step Up to Social Work PgDip, Full time accelerated
Date submission	22 May 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13432-S8T9V6

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4· Visitors' recommendation	4

# **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

David Childs	Social worker
Luke Tibbits	Social worker
Mandy Hargood	HCPC executive

# Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	BA (Hons) Social Work (Cambridge)
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Social worker in England
First intake	01 July 2003
Maximum learner	Up to 30
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03855

Programme name	BA (Hons) Social Work (Chelmsford)
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Social worker in England
First intake	01 July 2003

Maximum learner	Up to 45
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03856

Programme name	BA (Hons) Social Work (Peterborough)
Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Profession	Social worker in England
First intake	01 July 2003
Maximum learner	Up to 20
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03857

Programme name	MA Social Work (Cambridge)
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Social worker in England
First intake	01 June 2005
Maximum learner	Up to 30
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03858

Programme name	MA Social Work (Chelmsford)
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Social worker in England
First intake	01 June 2005
Maximum learner	Up to 45
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03859

Programme name	Step Up to Social Work PgDip
Mode of study	FTA (Full time accelerated)
Profession	Social worker in England
First intake	01 January 2015
Maximum learner	Up to 30
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03885

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process.

The education provider informed us that changes were being made to one of the modules shared across all these programmes.

# Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

### Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	Bournemouth University	
Name of programme(s)	PG Dip Social Work (Children and Families), Full time	
	MA Social Work (Children and Families), Full time	
Date submission	25 May 2018	
received		
Case reference	CAS-13353-V0V9T5	

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	3

### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

F	Patricia Higham	Social worker
١	Mandy Hargood	HCPC executive

# Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	PG Dip Social Work (Children and Families)
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Social worker in England
First intake	01 January 2016
Maximum learner	Up to 20
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03804

Programme name	MA Social Work (Children and Families)
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Social worker in England
First intake	01 January 2016

Maximum learner	Up to 20
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03828

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process.

The education provided has informed the HCPC of a change to the person with overall professional responsibility for the programmes.

# Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards mapping	Yes

### Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	Brunel University London
Name of programme(s)	MSc Occupational Therapy (Pre-registration), Full time
Date submission	23 April 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13384-N7F4V5

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	3

### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Patricia McClure	Occupational therapist
Shaista Ahmad	HCPC executive

# Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	MSc Occupational Therapy (Pre-registration)
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Occupational therapist
First intake	01 September 2007
Maximum learner	Up to 75
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03829

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process. The education provider has informed us that Lesley Collier has been appointed as the new programme leader for the programme mentioned above.

# Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards mapping	Yes

### Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	Brunel University London
Name of programme(s)	MA Social Work, Full time
Date submission	03 May 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13419-C3C9B1

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	3

### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed <u>on our website</u>.

### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Patricia Cartney	Social worker
Mandy Hargood	HCPC executive

# Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	MA Social Work
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Social worker in England
First intake	01 July 2004
Maximum learner	Up to 50
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03846

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes identified to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process. A change to the person with overall responsibility for the programme.

# Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

### Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	Cardiff University
Name of programme(s)	BSc (Hons) Occupational Therapy, Full time
Date submission	20 April 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13356-Y5L9J0

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	3

### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Claire Brewis	Occupational therapist
Natalie Matchett	Occupational therapist
Mandy Hargood	HCPC executive

# Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Occupational Therapy
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Occupational therapist
First intake	01 September 2007
Maximum learner	Up to 64
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03807

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process. The education provider has noted that at a previous review for the programme, the education provider closed the part time BSc (Hons) Occupational Therapy programme. Due to an oversight, this meant that the education provider did not request that the part time numbers be passed over to the full time route. They would now like to increase the student number from the 64 approved numbers to 79.

### Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

### Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	Canterbury Christ Church University
Name of programme(s)	MA in Social Work, Full time
	MA in Social Work, Part time
	Post Graduate Diploma in Social Work (Masters Exit Route
	Only), Full time
	Post Graduate Diploma in Social Work (Masters Exit Route
	Only, Part time
Date submission	09 May 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-12227-G2N6N7

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	4

# **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Anne Mackay	Social worker
Vicki Lawson-Brown	Social worker
Amal Hussein	HCPC executive

# Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	MA in Social Work	
Mode of study	FT (Full time)	
Profession	Social worker in England	
First intake	01 June 2005	
Maximum learner	Up to 35	
cohort		
Intakes per year	1	
Assessment reference	MC03444	

Programme name	MA in Social Work	
Mode of study	PT (Part time)	
Profession	Social worker in England	

First intake	01 June 2005
Maximum learner	Up to 10
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03445

Programme name	Post Graduate Diploma in Social Work (Masters Exit Route
	Only)
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Social worker in England
First intake	01 June 2005
Maximum learner	Up to 35
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03446

Programme name	Post Graduate Diploma in Social Work (Masters Exit Route
3 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	Only)
Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Profession	Social worker in England
First intake	01 June 2005
Maximum learner	Up to 10
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03447

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process.

The education provider has reported changes to the curriculum and assessment. They highlighted that they intend to change the structure of the programme particularly for Year 1 as well as a redevelopment of the part time route.

# Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards mapping	Yes

# Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	Canterbury Christ Church University	
Name of programme(s)	Post Graduate Diploma in Mental Health and Approved	
	Mental Health Professional Practice, Full time	
	MSc in mental health and approved mental health	
	professional practice, Full time	
Date submission	08 May 2018	
received		
Case reference	CAS-13220-G2M7S8	

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Outcome from first review	3
Section 5: Visitors' recommendation	4
Section 6: Future considerations for the programme(s) Error! Bookmark not define	∍d.

### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

The following is a report on the major change process undertaken by the HCPC to ensure that programmes detailed in this report meet our approval criteria for approved mental health professional (AMHP) programmes (referred to through this report as 'our standards'). The report details the process itself, the evidence considered, and recommendations made regarding programme approval.

Through undertaking this process, we have noted areas that may need to be considered as part of future HCPC assessment processes in section 6 of this report.

### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Graham Noyce	Social worker (Approved mental health
	professional)
Jasmine Oduro-Bonsrah	HCPC executive

# Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	Post Graduate Diploma in Mental Health and Approved
	Mental Health Professional Practice
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Entitlement	Approved mental health professional
First intake	01 January 2009
Maximum learner	Up to 15
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03710

Programme name	MSc in mental health and approved mental health	
	professional practice	
Mode of study	FT (Full time)	
Entitlement	Approved mental health professional	
First intake	01 January 2009	
Maximum learner	Up to 15	
cohort		
Intakes per year	1	
Assessment reference	MC03744	

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process.

The education provider highlighted a change in the overall management of the programme.

# Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

### Section 4: Outcome from first review

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were not satisfied that there was sufficient evidence that our standards continued to be met at this time, and therefore require further evidence as noted below.

### Further evidence required

In order to determine whether the standards continue to be met, the visitors require further evidence for the following standards for the reasons noted below.

We expect education providers to review the issues identified in this report, decide on any changes that they wish to make to programme(s), and then provide any further evidence to demonstrate how they meet the standards.

B.4 There must be a named person who has overall professional responsibility for the programme who must be appropriately qualified and experienced and, unless other arrangements are agreed, be on the relevant part of an appropriate professional register.

**Reason:** From the documentation provided the visitor noted that the person who would hold overall professional responsibility for the programmes is very experienced. However, from the evidence the visitor could not determine what the individual's responsibilities on the programme would be. It was also unclear how the person would manage the delivery of teaching related to law, legislation and policy in approved mental health practice, as the individual is from a different professional background.

**Suggested evidence:** Further evidence of what the responsibilities of the person with the overall responsibility of the programmes would be, along with how the person has the knowledge to manage the delivery of teaching related to law, legislation and policy in approved mental health practice.

### Section 5: Visitors' recommendation

Considering the education provider's response to the request for further evidence set out in section 4, the visitors are [select one option, format as sentence satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that the standards continue to be met and recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.

This report, including the recommendation of the visitors, will be considered at the 05 July 2018 meeting of the ETC. Following this meeting, this report should be read alongside the ETC's decision notice, which are available on our website.

# Section 6: Future considerations for the programme(s)

We include this section to note areas that may need to be considered as part of future HCPC assessment processes. Education providers do not need to respond to these areas through this assessment, but should consider how to engage with the HCPC around these areas in the future, for example through the monitoring processes. When this programme is next assessed against our standards, visitors will have access to this report, and will consider this section when making their recommendation on continuing programme approval.

From the curriculum vitae presented the visitor noted that there are sufficient staff to deliver the programme effectively. The visitor also notes that the education provider will be relying on members of staff from practice to deliver the law and policy module as they have the subject specific knowledge. Another member of staff is overseeing the selection of a suitable replacement, who will help teach law, legislation and policy on the programme. The visitor asks that the programme continues to have appropriate staff to deliver all aspects of the programme effectively, in particular the law and policy module.



Education provider	Canterbury Christ Church University
Name of programme(s)	BSc (Hons) Paramedic Science, Full time
	BSc (Hons) Paramedic Practice, Full time
	FD Health and Social Care (Paramedic Practice), Full time
	FD Health and Social Care (Paramedic Practice), Work
	based learning
Date submission	16 April 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13350-D9Y4H5

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Outcome from first review	
Section 5: Visitors' recommendation	

# **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Glyn Harding	Paramedic
Timothy Hayes	Paramedic
Mandy Hargood	HCPC executive

# Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Paramedic Science
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Paramedic
First intake	01 April 2011
Maximum learner	Up to 15
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03800

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Paramedic Practice
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Paramedic

First intake	01 September 2016
Maximum learner	Up to 30
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03801

Programme name	FD Health and Social Care (Paramedic Practice)
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Paramedic
First intake	01 September 2015
Maximum learner	Up to 15
cohort	
Intakes per year	2
Assessment reference	MC03814

Programme name	FD Health and Social Care (Paramedic Practice)
Mode of study	WBL (Work based learning)
Profession	Paramedic
First intake	01 September 2015
Maximum learner	Up to 15
cohort	
Intakes per year	2
Assessment reference	MC03815

Both FD Health and Social Care (Paramedic Practice) programmes are closed to new intakes, with the last intake date in March 2016, and the last graduation in November 2018. As there are still learners completing this programme, we will continue to monitor whether they meet our standards.

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process.

The education provider reported that there had been a change of person with overall responsibility for the programmes.

# Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

### Section 4: Outcome from first review

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were not satisfied that there was sufficient evidence that our standards continued to be met at this time, and therefore require further evidence as noted below.

### Further evidence required

In order to determine whether the standards continue to be met, the visitors require further evidence for the following standards for the reasons noted below.

We expect education providers to review the issues identified in this report, decide on any changes that they wish to make to programme(s), and then provide any further evidence to demonstrate how they meet the standards.

3.4 There must be a named person who has overall professional responsibility for the programme who must be appropriately qualified and experienced and, unless other arrangements are agreed, be on the relevant part of the Register.

**Reason:** The visitors received and considered the evidence regarding the appointment of the person with overall responsibility for the programmes. From this review, the visitors were unable to determine if the new person with overall responsibility had appropriate and relevant experience to perform the role. The named person has been in higher education for five months, and has not previously led a programme. Additionally, the visitors could not see from the evidence provided how the new person would be supported in this role, or to attain any relevant teaching qualifications that could be necessary for leading a programme. Therefore, the visitors require further evidence that demonstrates:

- that the person who has overall responsibility for the programmes is appropriately qualified and experienced,
- the support in place for this person; and / or
- information about further staff development to ensure that the new appointee has sufficient qualifications and experience to carry out the role.

**Suggested evidence:** Evidence that clearly demonstrates that the person who has overall responsibility for the programmes is appropriately qualified and experienced, that there is support in place for the person in this role, and information about further staff development to ensure that the new appointee has sufficient qualifications and experience to carry out the role.

# 3.5 There must be an adequate number of appropriately qualified and experienced staff in place to deliver an effective programme.

**Reason:** The visitors received and considered the evidence regarding the appointment of the person with overall responsibility for the programmes. The visitors were unable to determine from the evidence provided if the previous person with overall responsibility had now returned to the programme team, or was no longer employed by the education provider and therefore had not been replaced in the programme team. The visitors were unclear whether there is now an adequate number of appropriately qualified and experienced staff on the programmes, for the number of overall learners referenced in section 2 of this form. This also refers back to SET 3.4 where the visitors were unclear of the support for the new person with overall responsibility was receiving to carry out their role. The visitors need to see how the programme team operates, and how appropriately qualified and experienced the staff are, to ensure that the standard continues to be met.

**Suggested evidence:** Evidence that clearly demonstrates that there are staff in place with the relevant experience and qualifications to ensure the programmes can be delivered effectively to current learner numbers.

### Section 5: Visitors' recommendation

Considering the education provider's response to the request for further evidence set out in section 4, the visitors are satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that the standards continue to be met and recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	University of Central Lancashire
Name of programme(s)	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science, Full time
Date submission received	05 March 2018
Case reference	CAS-13035-J0Y9M4

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Outcome from first review	
Section 5: Visitors' recommendation	

### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed <u>on our website</u>.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Ian Davies	Biomedical scientist
Robert Keeble	Biomedical scientist
Shaista Ahmad	HCPC executive

# Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science	
Mode of study	FT (Full time)	
Profession	Biomedical scientist	
First intake	01 September 2014	
Maximum learner cohort	Up to 20	
Intakes per year	1	
Assessment reference	MC03596	

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process.

The education provider has made changes to the programme management and resources, curriculum and assessments.

# Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards mapping Yes	

### Section 4: Outcome from first review

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were not satisfied that there was sufficient evidence that our standards continued to be met at this time, and therefore require further evidence as noted below.

### Further evidence required

In order to determine whether the standards continue to be met, the visitors require further evidence for the following standards for the reasons noted below.

We expect education providers to review the issues identified in this report, decide on any changes that they wish to make to programme(s), and then provide any further evidence to demonstrate how they meet the standards.

# 3.8 The resources to support student learning in all settings must be effectively used.

**Reason:** From a review of the evidence provided, the visitors noted that the course handbook and module descriptors contained details about the programme, for learners. The visitors noted that there were inaccuracies contained within the documentation regarding HCPC requirements. For example, it states in the course handbook that the HCPC is an accrediting body rather than the statutory regulator. Further along in the documentation, there is also a reference to the HCPC as a professional body. However, this is not accurate as the HCPC is the statutory regulator for Biomedical Scientists. Consequently, the visitors require further evidence to demonstrate that the documentation has been amended to reflect the correct information:

- The HCPC is referred to as the The Health and Care Professions Council rather than The Healthcare Professions Council.
- The HCPC is not a professional body and hence we do not accredit programmes but approve.
- Completion of the programme leads to eligibility to 'apply for registration' with the HCPC rather than the HCPC "offering state registration".

**Suggested evidence:** Amended documentation with the accurate information that is available to enrolled learners.

### Section 5: Visitors' recommendation

Considering the education provider's response to the request for further evidence set out in section 4, the visitors are satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that the standards continue to be met and recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	Edge Hill University	
Name of programme(s)	Diploma of Higher Education Paramedic Practice, Full time	
Date submission	08 June 2018	
received		
Case reference	CAS-13474-K6D6D4	

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	3

# **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Gordon Pollard	Paramedic
Kenneth Street	Paramedic
Jasmine Oduro-Bonsrah	HCPC executive

# Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	Diploma of Higher Education Paramedic Practice	
Mode of study	FT (Full time)	
Profession	Paramedic	
First intake	01 September 2009	
Maximum learner	Up to 35	
cohort		
Intakes per year	3	
Assessment reference	MC03898	

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process. The changes the education provider highlighted were to allow learners who have successfully completed the Associate Ambulance Practitioner Programme to go onto year two of the Diploma of Higher Education Paramedic Practice programme.

# Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

### Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	The Frontline Organisation
Validating body	University of Bedfordshire
Name of programme(s)	The Frontline Academy (PG Dip Social Work), Full time
Date submission	19 April 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13320-L3B0H6

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	

#### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

#### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Patricia Cartney	Social worker
Amal Hussein	HCPC executive

## Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	The Frontline Academy (PG Dip Social Work)
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Social worker in England
First intake	01 July 2014
Maximum learner	Up to 352
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03761

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process. The education provider reported a change in the person with overall professional responsibility for this programme.

## Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards mapping	Yes

#### Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	University of Hertfordshire
Name of programme(s)	Practice Certificate in Supplementary Prescribing for
	Diagnostic Radiographers and Dietitians, Part time
	Practice Certificate in Independent Prescribing for Allied
	Health Professionals (Formerly known as Practice
	Certificate in IP for Physiotherapists, Podiatrists and
	Therapeutic Radiographers), Part time
Date submission	24 April 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13313-Y7T2R2

#### Contents

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	

#### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

#### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

David Rovardi	Independent prescriber
Niall Gooch	HCPC executive

## Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	Practice Certificate in Supplementary Prescribing for
	Diagnostic Radiographers and Dietitians
Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Entitlement	Supplementary prescribing
First intake	01 January 2017
Maximum learner	Up to 5
cohort	
Intakes per year	2
Assessment reference	MC03759

Programme name Practice Certificate in Independent Prescribing for	
	Health Professionals (Formely known as Practice Certificate

	in IP for Physiotherapists, Podiatrists and Therapeutic
	Radiographers)
Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Entitlement	Independent prescribing
First intake	01 January 2017
Maximum learner	Up to 15
cohort	
Intakes per year	2
Assessment reference	MC03760

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programmes continue to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process.

The education provider informed us of a change of programme leader.

## Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

#### Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	University of Lincoln
Name of programme(s)	Doctorate in Clinical Psychology (DclinPsy), Full time
Date submission	23 April 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13349-F4L4Q9

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Outcome from first review	
Section 5: Visitors' recommendation	

#### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

#### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Sabiha Azmi	Practitioner psychologist - Clinical
	psychologist
Gary Robinson	Practitioner psychologist - Clinical
	psychologist
Jasmine Pokuaa Oduro-Bonsrah	HCPC executive

## Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	Doctorate in Clinical Psychology (DclinPsy)
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Practitioner psychologist
Modality	Clinical psychologist
First intake	01 January 2005
Maximum learner	Up to 15
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03799

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process.

The Doctorate in Clinical Psychology (DclinPsy) is a joint programme managed and delivered by the University of Lincoln and University of Nottingham. There were a number of changes highlighted to the programme including the responsibilities for the implementation of policies, information for all those involved in the programme, the curriculum and assessment.

## Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards mapping	Yes

#### Section 4: Outcome from first review

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were not satisfied that there was sufficient evidence that our standards continued to be met at this time, and therefore require further evidence as noted below.

#### Further evidence required

In order to determine whether the standards continue to be met, the visitors require further evidence for the following standards for the reasons noted below.

We expect education providers to review the issues identified in this report, decide on any changes that they wish to make to programme(s), and then provide any further evidence to demonstrate how they meet the standards.

## 3.8 The resources to support student learning in all settings must be effectively used.

**Reason:** From the evidence the visitors noted that the Complaints, Academic offences and Academic appeals processes were appropriate for learners. The visitors reviewed this as part of the Extract from Programme handbook 2017/2018 document. The visitors were however unsure how current learners and practice educators were told about these changes and whether these changes are available to them.

**Suggested evidence:** Evidence of how current learners and practice educators are informed about the policy changes that apply to them as individuals.

## 3.16 There must be a process in place throughout the programme for dealing with concerns about students' profession-related conduct.

Reason: The visitors reviewed the evidence submitted and noted that learners from the University of Lincoln would be directed to Annex B, the Fitness to practise policy. However, from the information provided it states "The Fitness to Practise regulations of the Faculty of Medicine and Health Sciences at the University of Nottingham shall apply to this programme" and the link supplied was for the University of Nottingham. The visitors could therefore not determine how the education provider ensures there are effective processes in place throughout the programme to deal with concerns about students' profession related conduct the University of Lincoln. The visitors could also not determine that the learners affected by these policies have the right information relevant to them.

**Suggested evidence:** Evidence demonstrating that there are effective processes in place throughout the programme for dealing with concerns about learners' profession-related conduct at the University of Lincoln.

# 5.11 Students, practice placement providers and practice placement educators must be fully prepared for placement which will include information about an understanding of:

**Reason:** From the evidence provided the visitors note that there has been changes made to the module structure and assessment of placements. The visitors could not determine how the education provider has informed and prepared learners, practice placement providers and practice placement educators for the changes highlighted.

**Suggested evidence:** Evidence of how current learners and practice educators are informed about the changes to the credit structure and assessment of the programme, to ensure that they are fully prepared to fulfil their roles.

#### Section 5: Visitors' recommendation

Considering the education provider's response to the request for further evidence set out in section 4, the visitors are satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that the standards continue to be met and recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	London Metropolitan University
Name of programme(s)	BSc (Hons) Dietetics, Full time
Date submission	14 March 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13097-M8B4D7

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Outcome from first review	
Section 5: Visitors' recommendation	

#### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

#### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Paul Bates	Paramedic
Tracy Clephan	Dietitian
Eloise O'Connell	HCPC executive

## Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Dietetics
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Dietitian
First intake	01 September 2018
Maximum learner	Up to 10
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03622

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process. The education provider informed the HCPC that they intend to introduce a three-year counterpart to the existing four-year BSc (Hons) Dietetics and Nutrition. The proposed three-year BSc (Hons) Dietetics programme will be taught alongside the current four-year programme, using mostly the same modules, with some other modules a variant of those from the currently approved BSc and MSc / PG Dip programmes.

## Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

#### Section 4: Outcome from first review

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were not satisfied that there was sufficient evidence that our standards continued to be met at this time, and therefore require further evidence as noted below.

#### Further evidence required

In order to determine whether the standards continue to be met, the visitors require further evidence for the following standards for the reasons noted below.

We expect education providers to review the issues identified in this report, decide on any changes that they wish to make to programme(s), and then provide any further evidence to demonstrate how they meet the standards.

## 3.5 There must be an adequate number of appropriately qualified and experienced staff in place to deliver an effective programme.

**Reason:** From the evidence submitted, the visitors were not able to see how the education provider would ensure an adequate number of appropriately qualified and experienced staff on the new programme. There were going to be another 10 learners per cohort on the new programme, with a resulting cumulative increase of 30 learners over the whole 3 years. From the documentation the visitors were not clear that there was going to be an increase in staffing to meet this increase, and indeed they noted that there was apparently going to be a reduction of one FTE. They therefore require further evidence of what staffing arrangements the education provider will have in place to deliver the new programme effectively.

**Suggested evidence:** Evidence showing that the education provider has increased staffing appropriately to meet the increase in learner numbers, or has a plan for doing so, or has some other plan for ensuring that there are enough appropriately qualified and experienced staff in place to deliver the programme effectively.

#### 3.17 Service users and carers must be involved in the programme.

**Reason:** The visitors reviewed the evidence provided for this standard. However, it was not clear to them how this specific programme would involve service users. They were aware that the existing BSc and MSc / PG Dip programmes will have had to demonstrate that they met this standard, but for this new programme they could not see an appropriate level of detail regarding the involvement of service users and carers, including the education provider's strategy for deciding which service users and carers were most appropriate. The visitors therefore require further evidence of how service users and carers will be involved in the programme.

**Suggested evidence:** Evidence showing clear plans for service user and carer involvement, or showing the education provider's rationale for which service users and carers are most appropriate.

4.1 The learning outcomes must ensure that those who successfully complete the programme meet the standards of proficiency for their part of the Register.

Reason: From the evidence submitted – the "Table indicating designate and multivalent modules" and "BSc Dietetics Course Catalogue" it was not clear to the visitors exactly which modules would be used in the new programme, and the sequence in which they would be presented. They also noted that the mapping document submitted with the evidence did not mention any changes to the curriculum, when there appeared to be a number of such changes. They were therefore unclear about how the learning outcomes will ensure that those who successfully complete the programme meet the standards of proficiency (SOPs) for dietitians. They therefore require the education provider to clarify which specific modules will be included in the new programme, and in what order, and how the relevant learning outcomes will ensure that the SOPs are met.

**Suggested evidence:** A mapping document showing how the SOPs will be met by the learning outcomes of specific modules on the programme, and module descriptors for the modules which will be included on the new programme.

6.1 The assessment strategy and design must ensure that the student who successfully completes the programme has met the standards of proficiency for their part of the Register.

**Reason:** From the evidence submitted – the "Table indicating designate and multivalent modules" and "BSc Dietetics Course Catalogue" it was not clear to the visitors exactly which modules would be used in the new programme, and therefore they were not able to see what assessment strategy and design would be used. They also noted that the mapping document submitted with the evidence did not mention any changes to assessment, even though it appeared that there would be changes to assessment strategy and design on the new programme. They were therefore unclear about how the assessment strategy and design will ensure that those who successfully complete the programme meet the standards of proficiency (SOPs) for dietitians. They therefore

require the education provider to clarify what the assessment strategy and design will be used on the new programme, and how this will ensure that the SOPs are met.

**Suggested evidence:** Evidence showing the assessment strategy and design for the programme, and how this will enable learners to meet the SOPs for dietitians.

#### Section 5: Visitors' recommendation

Considering the education provider's response to the request for further evidence set out in section 4, the visitors are satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that the standards continue to be met and recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	New College Durham
Validating body	The Open University
	Teesside University
Name of programme(s)	BA Hons Social Work, Full time
	BA (Hons) Social Work, Full time
Date submission	16 April 2018
received	·
Case reference	CAS-13282-Y8P5J5

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Outcome from first review	
Section 5: Visitors' recommendation	4

#### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

#### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

David Childs	Social worker
Lynda Kelly	Social worker
Eloise O'Connell	HCPC executive

## Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	BA Hons Social Work
Validating body	The Open University
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Social worker in England
First intake	01 September 2017
Maximum learner	Up to 35
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03743

Programme name	BA (Hons) Social Work
Validating body	Teesside University

Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Social worker in England
First intake	01 September 2014
Last intake	30 September 2016
Maximum learner	Up to 35
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03886

In the past, the education provider has had a change to the validating body for the programme, with The Open University being the validating body going forward. For this reason, there are two programme listed above, with the different validating bodies. This was not assessed as part of the major change, as this has already been reviewed.

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process.

The education provider has highlighted a number of staff changes to the programme.

## Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

#### Section 4: Outcome from first review

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were not satisfied that there was sufficient evidence that our standards continued to be met at this time, and therefore require further evidence as noted below.

#### Further evidence required

In order to determine whether the standards continue to be met, the visitors require further evidence for the following standards for the reasons noted below.

We expect education providers to review the issues identified in this report, decide on any changes that they wish to make to programme(s), and then provide any further evidence to demonstrate how they meet the standards.

## 3.5 There must be an adequate number of appropriately qualified and experienced staff in place to deliver an effective programme.

Reason: The visitors received documentation that showed that there had been changes in staffing and the appointment of a new person with overall responsibility for the programme. However from the evidence received the visitors were unclear as to how the revised teaching timetables and the reduction in learner numbers meant that there were sufficient staff in place to deliver an effective programme, as a member of staff who has left has not been replaced. In addition, the visitors were unclear as to the role of the new curriculum manager and whether this role was part of the team delivering the programme. The curriculum vitae for the curriculum manager had not been included and therefore the visitors could not determine if the curriculum manager was appropriate to the role. The visitors were also unsure if there is a likelihood that if the learner numbers should increase again there would be sufficient staff in place to deliver the programme. The visitors require further evidence that demonstrates that there are sufficient staff in place to deliver this programme.

**Suggested evidence:** Evidence that demonstrates there are sufficient staff in place to deliver the programme effectively.

#### Section 5: Visitors' recommendation

Considering the education provider's response to the request for further evidence set out in section 4, the visitors are satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that the standards continue to be met and recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	University of Nottingham
Name of programme(s)	Doctorate in Clinical Psychology (DclinPsy), Full time
Date submission	20 April 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13355-X3Z2Q4

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	.2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Outcome from first review	
Section 5: Visitors' recommendation	

#### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

#### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Sabiha Azmi	Practitioner psychologist - Clinical
	psychologist
Gary Robinson	Practitioner psychologist - Clinical
	psychologist
Jasmine Pokuaa Oduro-Bonsrah	HCPC executive

## Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	Doctorate in Clinical Psychology (DclinPsy)
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Practitioner psychologist
Modality	Clinical psychologist
First intake	01 January 2005
Maximum learner	Up to 19
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03806

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process.

The Doctorate in Clinical Psychology (DclinPsy) is a joint programme managed and delivered by the University of Lincoln and University of Nottingham. There were a number of changes highlighted to the programme including the responsibilities for the implementation of policies, information for all those involved in the programme, the curriculum and assessment.

## Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards mapping	Yes

#### Section 4: Outcome from first review

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were not satisfied that there was sufficient evidence that our standards continued to be met at this time, and therefore require further evidence as noted below.

#### Further evidence required

In order to determine whether the standards continue to be met, the visitors require further evidence for the following standards for the reasons noted below.

We expect education providers to review the issues identified in this report, decide on any changes that they wish to make to programme(s), and then provide any further evidence to demonstrate how they meet the standards.

## 3.8 The resources to support student learning in all settings must be effectively used.

**Reason:** From the evidence the visitors noted that the Complaints, Academic offences and Academic appeals processes were appropriate for learners. The visitors reviewed this as part of the Extract from Programme handbook 2017/2018 document. The visitors were however unsure how current learners and practice educators were told about these changes and whether these changes are available to them.

**Suggested evidence:** Evidence of how current learners and practice educators are informed about the policy changes that apply to them as individuals.

# 5.11 Students, practice placement providers and practice placement educators must be fully prepared for placement which will include information about an understanding of:

**Reason:** From the evidence provided the visitors note that there has been changes made to the module structure and assessment of placements. The visitors could not determine how the education provider has informed and prepared learners, practice placement providers and practice placement educators for the changes highlighted.

**Suggested evidence:** Evidence of how current learners and practice educators are informed about the changes to the credit structure and assessment of the programme, to ensure that they are fully prepared to fulfil their roles.

#### Section 5: Visitors' recommendation

Considering the education provider's response to the request for further evidence set out in section 4, the visitors are satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that the standards continue to be met and recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	University of Plymouth
Name of programme(s)	BSc (Hons) Occupational Therapy, Full time
Date submission	09 April 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13332-N9N0S9

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	3

#### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

#### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Rebecca Khanna	Occupational therapist
Amal Hussein	HCPC executive

## Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Occupational Therapy
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Occupational therapist
First intake	01 September 2008
Maximum learner	Up to 60
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03782

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process. The education provider reported a change in programme leader.

## Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards mapping	Yes

#### Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.

This report, including the recommendation of the visitors, will be considered at the 05 July 2018 meeting of the ETC. Following this meeting, this report should be read alongside the ETC's decision notice, which are available on our website.

.



Education provider	University of Plymouth
Name of programme(s)	Supplementary Prescribing, Part time
	Non-Medical Prescribing IP and SP for Designated AHPs
	(PHs and CHs) level 6, Part time
	Non-Medical Prescribing IP and SP for Designated AHPs
	(PHs and CHs) level 7, Part time
	Supplementary Prescribing to Independent Prescribing
	Level 6, Part time
	Supplementary Prescribing to Independent Prescribing
	Level 7, Part time
Date submission	01 May 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13364-T9C1W0

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	1

#### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed <u>on our website</u>.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

#### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

James Pickard	Chiropodist / podiatrist (Independent
	prescriber)
Mandy Hargood	HCPC executive

## Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	Supplementary Prescribing
Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Entitlement	Supplementary prescribing
First intake	01 September 2006
Maximum learner	Up to 60
cohort	
Intakes per year	2
Assessment reference	MC03817

Programme name	Non-Medical Prescribing IP and SP for Designated AHPs (PHs and CHs) level 6
Mode of study	PT (Part time)

Entitlement	Supplementary prescribing
Entitlement	Supplementary prescribing Independent Prescribing
Maximum learner cohort	Up to 10
Intakes per year	2
Assessment reference	MC03818

Programme name	Non-Medical Prescribing IP and SP for Designated AHPs
	(PHs and CHs) level 7
Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Entitlement	Supplementary prescribing
	Independent prescribing
First intake	01 January 2014
Maximum learner	Up to 10
cohort	
Intakes per year	2
Assessment reference	MC03819

Programme name	Supplementary Prescribing to Independent Prescribing Level 6
Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Entitlement	Supplementary prescribing Independent prescribing
First intake	01 January 2014
Maximum learner cohort	Up to 10
Intakes per year	2
Assessment reference	MC03820

Programme name	Supplementary Prescribing to Independent Prescribing Level 7
Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Entitlement	Supplementary prescribing Independent prescribing
First intake	01 January 2014
Maximum learner cohort	Up to 10
Intakes per year	2
Assessment reference	MC03821

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process.

There has been a change to the person with overall responsibility for the programmes

## Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

#### Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.

This report, including the recommendation of the visitors, will be considered at the 05 July 2018 meeting of the ETC. Following this meeting, this report should be read alongside the ETC's decision notice, which are available on our website.

•



Education provider	University of Plymouth
Name of programme(s)	BSc (Hons) Paramedic Practitioner, Full time
Date submission	14 May 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13423-D1X1Z9

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	.2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	3

#### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

#### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Gordon Pollard	Paramedic
Kenneth Street	Paramedic
Mandy Hargood	HCPC executive

## Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Paramedic Practitioner
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Paramedic
First intake	01 September 2013
Maximum learner	Up to 10
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03850

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process. The education provider has reduced the number of practice placement hours for the programme in line with the professional body requirements.

## Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

#### Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	University of Portsmouth
Name of programme(s)	Cert HE Paramedic Practice, Work based learning
Date submission	12 April 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13181-Y8Y1P8

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4. Visitors' recommendation	

#### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

#### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Anthony Hoswell	Paramedic
John Donaghy	Paramedic
Niall Gooch	HCPC executive

## Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	Cert HE Paramedic Practice
Mode of study	WBL (Work based learning)
Profession	Paramedic
First intake	01 March 2016
Maximum learner	Up to 30
cohort	
Intakes per year	3
Assessment reference	MC03681

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process. The education provider informed us that they were planning to take on a small extra number of learners from the Isle of Wight Ambulance Service.

## Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

#### Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	Queen's University of Belfast
Name of programme(s)	Doctorate in Clinical Psychology (DclinPsych), Full time
Date submission	28 March 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13031-L0G3T4

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4. Visitors' recommendation	

### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed <u>on our website</u>.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

#### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Lincoln Simmonds	Practitioner psychologist - Clinical
	psychologist
Stephen Davies	Practitioner psychologist - Clinical
	psychologist
Mandy Hargood	HCPC executive

Programme name	Doctorate in Clinical Psychology (DclinPsych)
	7 07 7 7
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Practitioner psychologist
Modality	Clinical psychologist
First intake	01 January 1994
Maximum learner	Up to 13
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03595

The education provider has informed the HCPC that there have been changes to the programme team with four recent resignations totalling 2.0FTE. These staff include the Placement Co-ordinator and Personal and Professional Development Lead.

### Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

### Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	University of Salford
Name of programme(s)	BSc (Hons) Prosthetics and Orthotics, Full time
Date submission	12 March 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13251-Y0P0H2

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Outcome from first review	
Section 5: Visitors' recommendation	

#### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed <u>on our website</u>.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

#### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Gordon Burrow	Chiropodist / podiatrist
Hazel Currie	Prosthetist / orthotist
Mandy Hargood	HCPC executive

# Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Prosthetics and Orthotics
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Prosthetist / orthotist
First intake	01 January 1998
Maximum learner	Up to 30
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03717

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process. The education provider have changed the person with overall responsibility for the programme.

### Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

#### Section 4: Outcome from first review

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were not satisfied that there was sufficient evidence that our standards continued to be met at this time, and therefore require further evidence as noted below.

### Further evidence required

In order to determine whether the standards continue to be met, the visitors require further evidence for the following standards for the reasons noted below.

We expect education providers to review the issues identified in this report, decide on any changes that they wish to make to programme(s), and then provide any further evidence to demonstrate how they meet the standards.

# 3.5 There must be an adequate number of appropriately qualified and experienced staff in place to deliver an effective programme.

Reason: The visitors reviewed the documentation and were satisfied that the proposed person with overall responsibility for the programme met the standard. However, the visitors were unclear if the previous person with overall responsibility for the programme remains in place, and therefore whether there were an adequate number of appropriately qualified and experienced staff in place on the programme. The visitors were also unclear of how the new person with overall responsibility for the programme would be supported in the role by other staff. The visitors require documentation that clearly demonstrates that there are an adequate number of appropriately qualified staff in place to deliver an effective programme

**Suggested evidence:** Evidence that demonstrates the staffing for the programme, indicating the support for the new person with overall responsibility for the programme.

# Section 5: Visitors' recommendation

Considering the education provider's response to the request for further evidence set out in section 4, the visitors are satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that the standards continue to be met and recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	University of Salford
Name of programme(s)	BSc (Hons) Podiatry, Full time
	BSc (Hons) Podiatry, Part time
Date submission	29 March 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13324-X5G5W7

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	

### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Andrew Hill	Chiropodist / podiatrist (Prescription
	only medicines – sale / supply)
Amal Hussein	HCPC executive

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Podiatry
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Chiropodist / podiatrist
Entitlement	Prescription only medicines – sale / supply
	Prescription only medicines – administration
First intake	01 September 1993
Maximum learner	Up to 60
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03773

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Podiatry
Mode of study	PT (Part time)

Profession	Chiropodist / podiatrist
Entitlement	Prescription only medicines – administration Prescription only medicines – sale / supply
First intake	01 September 1993
Maximum learner cohort	Up to 15
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03781

The education provider has reported a change in programme leader.

### Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards mapping	Yes

#### Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	Sheffield Hallam University
Name of programme(s)	BSc (Hons) Radiotherapy and Oncology, Full time
Date submission	22 March 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13260-V3P8F6

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	.2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Outcome from first review	
Section 5: Visitors' recommendation	

### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Kathryn Burgess	Radiographer - Therapeutic
	radiographer
Mandy Hargood	HCPC executive

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Radiotherapy and Oncology
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Radiographer
Modality	Therapeutic radiographer
First intake	01 September 2002
Maximum learner	Up to 70
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03722

The education provider reported a change to the person with overall responsibility for the programme.

### Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

#### Section 4: Outcome from first review

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were not satisfied that there was sufficient evidence that our standards continued to be met at this time, and therefore require further evidence as noted below.

#### Further evidence required

In order to determine whether the standards continue to be met, the visitors require further evidence for the following standards for the reasons noted below.

We expect education providers to review the issues identified in this report, decide on any changes that they wish to make to programme(s), and then provide any further evidence to demonstrate how they meet the standards.

3.4 There must be a named person who has overall professional responsibility for the programme who must be appropriately qualified and experienced and, unless other arrangements are agreed, be on the relevant part of the Register.

**Reason:** The visitor reviewed and scrutinised the evidence sent to meet this change. From the visitor's reading it would appear that the person appointed to have overall responsibility for this programme, already holds this role for another programme within the education provider. The person holds the role of assessment officer for both the programmes too.

Whilst the visitor noted in the standards mapping document that there has been no change to the programme team, the visitor could not see how the person appointed to

take on overall responsibility for this programme received support across all the roles as detailed above from the supporting teaching team. Therefore, the visitor was unclear how the person with overall responsibility for this programme receives the support to carry out this role.

**Suggested evidence:** Evidence to demonstrate how the person taking on this role alongside the other significant roles will be adequately supported to do so.

### Section 5: Visitors' recommendation

Considering the education provider's response to the request for further evidence set out in section 4, the visitors are satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that the standards continue to be met and recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	Sheffield Hallam University
Name of programme(s)	PG Cert Approved Mental Health Professional (AMHP),
	Full time
Date submission	14 May 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13410-S0W3D2

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	3

#### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

The following is a report on the major change process undertaken by the HCPC to ensure that programmes detailed in this report meet our approval criteria for approved mental health professional (AMHP) programmes (referred to through this report as 'our standards'). The report details the process itself, the evidence considered, and recommendations made regarding programme approval.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Graham Noyce	Social worker (Approved mental health
	professional)
Jane Hutchison	Approved mental health professional
Mandy Hargood	HCPC executive

# Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	PG Cert Approved Mental Health Professional (AMHP)	
Mode of study	FT (Full time)	
Entitlement	Approved mental health professional	
First intake	01 September 2015	
Maximum learner	Up to 30	
cohort		
Intakes per year	1	
Assessment reference	MC03842	

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process. The education provider has informed us that the learner numbers for the programme will increase from 20 to 30 from September 2018.

### Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

#### Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	Staffordshire University
Name of programme(s)	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Cellular Sciences), Part time
	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Blood Sciences), Part time
	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Genetic Sciences), Part time
	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Infection Sciences), Part time
Date submission received	25 April 2018
Case reference	CAS-13328-B7H4M6

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	. 4

#### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed <u>on our website</u>.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

#### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Mary Hannon-Fletcher	Biomedical scientist
Robert Keeble	Biomedical scientist
Mandy Hargood	HCPC executive

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Cellular Sciences)	
Mode of study	PT (Part time)	
Profession	Biomedical scientist	
First intake	01 September 2017	
Maximum learner	Up to 15	
cohort		
Intakes per year	1	
Assessment reference	MC03776	

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Blood Sciences)	
Mode of study	PT (Part time)	
Profession	Biomedical scientist	

First intake	01 September 2017
Maximum learner	Up to 15
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03777

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Genetic Sciences)	
Mode of study	PT (Part time)	
Profession	Biomedical scientist	
First intake	01 September 2017	
Maximum learner	Up to 15	
cohort		
Intakes per year	1	
Assessment reference	MC03778	

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Infection Sciences)
Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Profession	Biomedical scientist
First intake	01 September 2017
Maximum learner	Up to 15
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03779

Currently the programmes are approved for 15 learners per year across all specialisms, and the education provider wants to increase this to 30 learners to meet service needs.

# Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

# Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	University of Surrey	
Name of programme(s)	Dip HE Operating Department Practice, Full time	
	BSc (Hons) Paramedic Science, Full time	
Date submission	13 April 2018	
received	·	
Case reference	CAS-13295-P9R8L4	

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Outcome from first review	
Section 5: Visitors' recommendation	

### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

#### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Julie Weir	Operating department practitioner
Kenneth Street	Paramedic
Mandy Hargood	HCPC executive

Programme name	Dip HE Operating Department Practice	
Mode of study	FT (Full time)	
Profession	Operating department practitioner	
First intake	01 September 2002	
Maximum learner	Up to 35	
cohort		
Intakes per year	1	
Assessment reference	MC03747	

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Paramedic Science	
Mode of study	FT (Full time)	
Profession	Paramedic	

First intake	01 September 2016
Maximum learner	Up to 20
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03770

The education provider has appointed a new person with overall responsibility for both programmes.

# Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

#### Section 4: Outcome from first review

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were not satisfied that there was sufficient evidence that our standards continued to be met at this time, and therefore require further evidence as noted below.

#### Further evidence required

In order to determine whether the standards continue to be met, the visitors require further evidence for the following standards for the reasons noted below.

We expect education providers to review the issues identified in this report, decide on any changes that they wish to make to programme(s), and then provide any further evidence to demonstrate how they meet the standards.

#### 3.2 The programme must be effectively managed.

**Reason:** The visitors reviewed the documentation and accepted that the person appointed to have overall responsibility for the programme was suitably qualified and experienced for the role. However, the visitors noted that the proposed person already has a significant role within the programme teams as the lead for simulation for the programmes. It was not clear to the visitors from the evidence submitted how the new person will maintain these two roles. Therefore the visitors require additional evidence

that demonstrates how the new person with overall responsibility for the programmes manages his workload and how this impacts the management of the programmes.

**Suggested evidence:** Evidence that demonstrates how the workload for the new person with overall responsibility is managed to ensure the programme is effectively managed.

# 3.5 There must be an adequate number of appropriately qualified and experienced staff in place to deliver an effective programme.

**Reason:** The visitors reviewed the documentation and accepted that the person appointed to have overall responsibility for the programme was suitably qualified and experienced for the role. However, the visitors were unclear how the education provider ensures that there are an adequate number of appropriately qualified and experienced staff in place to support the person with overall responsibility for the programme.

**Suggested evidence:** Evidence to demonstrate that there are an adequate number of appropriately qualified and experienced staff in place to deliver an effective programme

#### Section 5: Visitors' recommendation

Considering the education provider's response to the request for further evidence set out in section 4, the visitors are satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that the standards continue to be met and recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	University of the West of England, Bristol	
Name of programme(s)	BSc (Hons) Physiotherapy, Full time	
Date submission	17 April 2018	
received		
Case reference	CAS-13376-Q8V8H8	

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4. Visitors' recommendation	

### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed <u>on our website</u>.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Janet Lawrence	Physiotherapist
Nicola Smith	Physiotherapist
Mandy Hargood	HCPC executive

# Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Physiotherapy	
Mode of study	FT (Full time)	
Profession	Physiotherapist	
First intake	01 September 1997	
Maximum learner	Up to 70	
cohort		
Intakes per year	1	
Assessment reference	MC03823	

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process. The education provider has noted that the learner numbers for the programme will increase to 97 from September 2018 from the HCPC approved numbers of 70.

### Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted	
Major change notification form	Yes	
Completed major change standards	Yes	
mapping		

#### Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	University of the West of England, Bristol
Name of programme(s)	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Blood Science), Full time
	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Blood Science), Part time
	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Genetic Science), Full
	time
	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Genetic Science), Part
	time
	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Infection Science), Full
	time
	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Infection Science), Part
	time
	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Tissue Science), Full time
	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Tissue Science), Part
	time
Date submission	27 April 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13434-H5Y7Z1

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	4

#### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Ian Davies	Biomedical scientist
Mandy Hargood	HCPC executive

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Blood Science)
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Biomedical scientist
First intake	01 September 2011
Maximum learner	Up to 27
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03863

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Blood Science)
Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Profession	Biomedical scientist
First intake	01 September 2011

Maximum learner cohort	Up to 27
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03864

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Genetic Science)
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Biomedical scientist
First intake	01 September 2011
Maximum learner	Up to 27
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03865

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Genetic Science)
Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Profession	Biomedical scientist
First intake	01 September 2011
Maximum learner	Up to 27
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03866

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Infection Science)
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Biomedical scientist
First intake	01 September 2011
Maximum learner cohort	Up to 27
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03867

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Infection Science)
Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Profession	Biomedical scientist
First intake	01 September 2011
Maximum learner	Up to 27
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03868

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Tissue Science)
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
First intake	01 September 2011
Maximum learner	Up to 27
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03869

Programme name	BSc (Hons) Healthcare Science (Tissue Science)
Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Profession	Biomedical scientist
First intake	01 September 2011
Maximum learner	Up to 27
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC03870

There has been a change to the person with overall responsibility for the programmes.

### Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

#### Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	University of the West of Scotland
Name of programme(s)	Non-Medical Prescribing, Flexible
	Non-Medical Prescribing, Part time
	Non-Medical Prescribing, Flexible
	Non-Medical Prescribing, Part time
Date submission	9 May 2018
received	
Case reference	CAS-13331-Q0D4Q0

#### **Contents**

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	4

#### **Executive Summary**

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

#### **Our standards**

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed <u>on our website</u>.

#### How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

### **HCPC** panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Jane Day	Radiographer - Therapeutic
	radiographer
David Rovardi	Independent prescriber
Mandy Hargood	HCPC executive

Programme name	Non-Medical Prescribing
Mode of study	FLX (Flexible)
Entitlement	Supplementary prescribing
First intake	01 September 2007
Maximum learner	Up to 35
cohort	
Intakes per year	2
Assessment reference	MC03795



Programme name	Non-Medical Prescribing
Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Entitlement	Supplementary prescribing
First intake	01 September 2007
Maximum learner cohort	Up to 35
Intakes per year	2
Assessment reference	MC03796

Programme name	Non-Medical Prescribing
Mode of study	FLX (Flexible)
Entitlement	Independent prescribing
	Supplementary Prescribing
First intake	01 January 2014
Maximum learner	Up to 15
cohort	
Intakes per year	2
Assessment reference	MC03797

Programme name	Non-Medical Prescribing
Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Entitlement	Independent prescribing
	Supplementary Prescribing
First intake	01 January 2014
Maximum learner	Up to 15
cohort	
Intakes per year	2
Assessment reference	MC03798

The education provider reported a change to the person with overall responsibility for the programmes.

# Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards	Yes
mapping	

### Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.